PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY
HISTORIC SITE-SUMMARX;SHEET
Survey #: _P.G. #86A-6 .- Building Date: __ 1893

Building Name: _Dr. William H. Gibbons House

Location: 10205 Croom Road, Croom,. Maryland
Private/Residence/Occupied/Good/Inaccessible

Description

Dr. Gibbons House is a two-story frame, gable roof dwelling with an
ell-shaped main block and a rear kitchen wing, It stands on a five acre
lot, overlooking Croom Road immediately to the east. The house is covered
with German siding and roofed with brown, textured synthetlc shingle. " The
brick foundation is parged with cement. The three bay east (front): gable
end has entrance in the first bay through a decorative carved door. The
first story is sheltered by a four bay, hipped roof entrance porch with a
balustrade of plain rectangular balusters. The turned and cliamfered porch
posts have jig-sawn fan brackets. The 2/2 double-hung- -sash windows are
recent replacements. The original sash were also 2/2 sash. ‘The gable
surmounting the facade has a pentagonal window centéred at loft level. The
crown molded cornice is returned and there is a small wooden pendant in
the gable peak. The interior of the Dr. Gibbons house has a south entry
hall with a north parlor. Two rooms at the center of the house are a
south parlor and north dining room. At the west or rear is the kitchen.
Except for the immediate yard surrounding the house, the five-acre
property is completely fenced with 3-board wooden. fenc1ng for horse
pasturage. Close to the southwest kitchen entrance are a frame mitlkhouse,
a meat house and a cement capped well.

Significance

The Dr. Gibbons House is significant for its large size and
well-designed Victorian vernacular architecture. It is a landmark in the
Village of Croom for its architecture, for its prominent location at the
intersection of Croom and St. Thomas Church Roads, and due to the
importance in the community of its builder and long time resident Dr.
William H. Gibbons. The house was built in 1893 by Dr. Gibbons, and
served from that time until his death in 1940 as his home and office.
Gibbons was born in TB, Prince George's County in 1863, and graduated from
Western Maryland College and the Medical School of the o61d Maryland
Agricultural College, now University of Maryland. The Gibbons house is
restrained in decorative detail, but has such well-placed features as the
pentagonal windows in the east, north and south gable ends which reflect
the outline of the gable in which they are located. The turned porch
posts have elaborate jig-sawn fan brackets. The house stands in the
Village of Croom, an historically important cluster of buildings which
centers around St Thomas' Episcopal Church.

Acreage: 5.28 acres
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DOE yes _ no

'I. Name

{indicate preferred name)
historic Dr. William H. Gibbons House
and/or common
2. Location
street & number 10205 Croom Road (Maryland Route 382) —__ not for publication
Upper Marlb Croom 4
city, town PPEr fariboro — vicinity of congressional district
state Maryland county Prince George's
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
— district —— public X occupied X agricuiture — museum
—X_building(s) _X_ private —— unoccupied —__ commercial —_ park
— . structure ___both — work in progress ____educational _X_ private residence
—site Public Acquisition Accessible —— entertainment — religious
— Object — in process —— Yes: restricted —— government —— scientific
being considered : unrestricted — industriat — transportation
X not applicable X no —_ military —__other:

q. Ownel‘ Of Property (give names and mailing addresses

of all owners)

name Mr. & Mrs. Michael Simmerer

street & number 10205 Croom Road telephone no.:

city, town UPPET Mar1boro state and zip code Maryland 20772

5. Location of Legal Descri?tion

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Prince George's County Court House 4881

liber

street & number Main Street folio 389

city, town Upper Marlboro state Maryland 20772

6. Representation in Existing =mistorical surveys

titte Historic Sites and Districts Plan

date July 1981 — federal

— state _X_oounty — flocal

depository for survey records County Administration Building, Room 4010

Upper Marlboro Maryland 20772

city, town state




7. Description Survey No, ocr ¢

Condition Check one Check one

—— excelient — deteriorated ____ unaitered —— original site

— X good — ruins _X altered —__moved date of move
— fair — unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

Dr. Gibbons House is a two-story frame, gable roof dwelling with an
ell-shaped main block and a rear kitchen wing. It stands on a five acre
lot, overlooking Croom Road immediately to the east.

The Dr. Gibbons House is covered with German siding and roofed with
brown, textured synthetic shingle. The brick foundation is parged with
cement. The three bay east (front) gable end has entrance in the first
bay through a decorative door having two horizontal wooden panels carved
with a sunburst design alternating with two rows of three small square
panels. The upper one third of the door is glazed with a large square
glass pane. The door is surmounted by a rectangular transom. The
quarter-round transom bar has a pattern of incised lines running in sets
of three, first vertically and then horizontally. The wide flat door
surround has a central grooved band. This surround is repeated on the
windows throughout the main block.

The first story is sheltered by a four bay, hipped roof entrance
porch with a balustrade of plain rectangular balusters. The turned and
chamfered porch posts have jig-sawn fan brackets. The wooden porch floor
resting on brick piers was completely replaced in 1981. The 2/2 double-
hung-sash windows are also recent replacements. The original sash were
also 2/2 sash. There are three windows at second story level. The gable
surmounting the facade has a pentagonal window centered at loft level. The
crown molded cornice is returned and there is a small wooden pendant in
the gable peak.

The entrance porch wraps around the south side of the dwelling and
shelters the entry to the office, a small one-room infill addition in the
ell of the main block. The office entry is a four-panel door. The office
addition is one story, with a hipped roof and overhanging eaves, sided and
finished 1ike the rest of the main block.

The south elevation of the main block is one bay in the projecting
gable end of the ell. There is a window at first and second story levels.
The gable end is finished much the same as that on the east (front),
however, there is no pendant at the gable peak. A brick chimney with a
corbelled cap rises from the east slope of the roof. On the east side of
this gable is the office, with a double 2/2 sash window. On the west side
of the ell is the kitchen wing.

The two bay north side of the main block is surmounted by a gable in
the second bay. The gable has the same crown molded returned cornice,
crown molded rake board and pentagonal window as the east and south facing
gables. The parged foundation is visible on this elevation.
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The west or rear facade has a window at the north and south bays. The
center of the facade is dominated by the gable roof two-by-one-bay
two-story kitchen wing. The wing is unfenestrated at the west (rear)
gable end. An interior-brick chimney rises at the gable ridge. A door at
the north corner enters a small enclosed porch. A bulkhead cellar -
entrance is at the south corner. '

The north facade of the kitchen wing has two windows at second story
level. The south facade has a shed roof entrance porch across the first
story, supported by chamfered posts. The porch shelters a central
entrance to the kitchen. The kitchen wing is German sided and rests on a
parged cement foundation. The window and door surrounds are of plain
board.

The interior of the Dr. Gibbons house has a south entry hall with a
north parlor. Two rooms at the center of the house are a south parlor and
north.dining room. At the west or rear is the kitchen.

The narrow entry hall measures 5 feet 11 inches by 15 feet 7 inches.
The open-string stair rises along the south wall in a single flight to the
second floor. The heavy newel post is turned and chamfered, surmounted by
a spherical knob. The turned balusters are attached at the lower end to a
strip of molding running diagonally up the stairs, and not to the
individual steps. The flooring in the hall has been covered with
wall-to-wall carpeting. The door and window surrounds are composed of
wide wood moldings with a central half-round flanked by an inner and outer
raised rectangular band, and bulls-eye corner blocks.

The north parlor is reached through a wide rectangular opening from
the hall. This entryway appears to have been widened from its original
size. The room has a replacement parquet floor. The hearth centered on
the west wall was designed for use with a stove. The wooden mantel has
slender banded columns on base blocks supporting brackets which support
the mantel shelf. The frieze has a wide carved band of a curving stylized
leaf design. A circular plaster medallion centered on the ceiling has a
design of radiating flower petals.

The west end of the stair hall enters the rear (west) parlor. The
door surround has banded baseblocks. The baseboard throughout the house
is approximately 8-1/2 inches in height with a projecting curving cap and
quarter-round molding along the floor. The west parlor has a narrow

chimney on the east wall to which a stove is attached. A circular vent in

the ceiling above the stove, original to the house, allowed the warm air
to rise to a south bedroom on the second story. The vent has a wide,
decorative rim. A plaster medallion at the center of the ceiling has a
design of diamond and semi-circular shapes in a geometric pattern. A door
in the southeast corner of the west parlor enters the office, which is a
small room dominated by doorways. There is an exterior door on the east
wall and two interior doors, one on the west and one on the north walls.
The moldings are the same as those throughout the first floor.
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The dining room, reached from a door in the north wall of the west
parlor, retains its moldings but has no hearth or ceiling medallion. The
flooring is original, of narrow evenly matched boards.

The second story of the main block contains a central hall running
from east to west. A plaster arch marks the point -where the stair enters
the hall, at approximately the middle of its Tength. Two bedrooms open on
the north side of the hall and one on the south. The baseboards and
molding are the same as those on the first story. Doors are four-panel,
with original butt hinges having a decorative geometric design.

The northeast (front) bedroom has a plain wooden mantel with two
brackets supporting the mantel shelf. The hearth was designed to
accommodate a stove. A new closet has been constructed by wailing off the
east three feet of the stairhall and opening a doorway in the east corner
of the south wall of the bedroom. The new closet is lighted by the window
which formerly 1it the stairhall.

An enclosed stair to the attic is at the southwest end of the hall.
The northwest bedroom, which opens opposite the attic stair, has a curving
convex wall. A doorway at the west end of the hall enters the second
story level of the kitchen wing.

_ The first story of the kitchen wing is entered via a wide opening in

the northwest end of the west parlor. A hall leads past a bath and the
cellar entry to the kitchen at the west end of the wing. A stair along
the east wall of the kitchen leads to the bath and a west bedroom on the
second story.

Except for the immediate yard surrounding the house, the five-acre
property is completely fenced with 3-board wooden fencing for horse
pasturage. Close to the southwest kitchen entrance are two frame
outbuildings and a cement capped well. The smaller builder is a milk
house of 1 x 1 bay, standing on a brick foundation. It is covered with
German siding and has a gable roof covered with patterned metal shingles.
The entry is on the north. The south side has a square window opening
covered by a wooden shutter. The brick floor is below ground level.

The meat house, slightly larger and higher, is also 1 x 1 bay. It is
German sided, with a standing seam metal gable roof and a brick foundation.
The interior has a poured cement floor. There are no window openings.

South of the house is a new stable. A raised gable ridge in the
broad hipped roof is the original roofline of a small one-stall stable
that was enlarged to create the present building. To the west (rear) of
the stable is a frame chicken-coop of 2 x 1 bay with vertical board siding
and a standing seam metal gable roof. It stands on poured cement footers.
There is evidence of a ruined outbuilding located far southwest of the
house, in a pasture, shaded by a large osage orange tree.




8. Significance Survey No.p._gsa-6

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

—— prehistoric __ archeology-prehistoric __ community planning ____ landscape architecture____ religion

—1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic — conservation — law — science

— 1500-1599 agricuiture — economics — literature — sculpture

— 1600-1699 ___ architecture — education — military — social/

——1700-1799 __art —— engineering — music humanitarian

X 1800-1899 ___ commerce —— exploration/settiement __ philosophy - — theater

— 1900- — communications — industry — politics/government __ transportation
— invention 4 other (specify)

Medicine
Specific dates 1393 Builder/Architect
check: Applicable Criteria: _A _B _C _D
and/or

Applicable Exception: __A B C D E F G

Level of Significance: _ natiomal _ state _ local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.

The Dr. Gibbons House is significant for its large size and
well-designed Victorian vernacular architecture. It is a landmark in the
Village of Croom for its architecture, for its prominent location at the
intersection of Croom and St. Thomas Church Roads, and due to the
importance in the community of its builder and long time resident Dr.
William H. Gibbons.

The house was built in 1893 by Dr. Gibbons, and served from that time
until his death in 1940 as his home and office. The land on which it
stands was earlier part of an 18-acre parcel which included the_John W.
Coffren House and store. Dr. Gibbons bought the parcel in 18931, selling
a three acre parcel containing the Coffren House and store shortly
thereafter. He constructed his house the same year he purchased the
property. In 1910 a rear kitchen addition was built, probably replacing
an earlier one-story kitchen.?2

Or. Gibbons was born in TB, Prince George's County in 1863. He
graduated from Western Maryland College and the Medical School of the old
Maryland Agricultural College, now University of Maryland. He married
Mary Duley, a resident of Croom, in 1891, and served as a country doctor
to the surrounding vicinity, based from his home and office in Croom.

The Gibbons house is imposing in its size and placement close to an
important intersection in rural southeastern Prince George's County. It is
restrained in decorative detail, but has such well-placed features as the
pentagonal windows in the east, north and south gable ends which reflect
the outline of the gable in which they are located. The turned porch
posts have elaborate jig-sawn fan brackets. A small one-story infill bay
at the southeast corner of the house has a separate entrance sheltered by
the main entrance porch, and served as Dr. Gibbon's office.

The Gibbons House stands in the Village of Croom,:an historically
important cluster of buildings which centers around St. Thomas' Episcopal
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Church. Besides this important early (1740) church and its cemetery,
several 19th century dwelling houses still stand along the Croom Road, as
well as the Coffren store and post office, the Croom schoolhouse and old
St. Thomas rectory building. The Gibbons house stands prominently near
the center of this historic grouping.

Notes

1 prince George's County Land Records, JWB #24:179.

2 Interview with descendant of Dr. Gibbons, 1981.

3 Obituary, 1940, Enguirer-Gazette.




9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No. p_G. 486A-6

See #8

" 10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property 5.28 acres Tax Map 128 Parcel 42
Quadrangie name _Brandywine C Quadrangle scale

UTM References do NOT complete UTM references
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Verbal boundary description and justification

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries
state code county code
state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

name/titte Marina King, Architectural Historian, Susan Pear, Architectural Historian

organization Historic Preservation Commission date June 1988
street & number 14741 Governor Oden Bowie Drive telephone  (301)952-4609
cnyom'”m Upper Marlboro state Maryland 20772

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of
individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
Shaw House
21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 269-2438
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4831:389
6 October 1977
Deed

579:431
9 QOctober 1940
Deed

579:429
9 QOctober 1940
Deed

JWB #24:179
20 March 1893
Deed

JWB 10:675
14 March 1889
Deed

Chain of Title
Dr. William Gibbons House
P.G. #86A-6

Wilfred Dyer, Trustee, to Michael & Mary Simmerer,
5.28 acres, residue of land of George Harrison, same
land as #579:431.

Matilda Wood Duvall to George & Helena Harrison;
16-1/2 acres of land, same as conveyed to Duvall by
579:429.

John & Clara Gibbons, William & Helen Gibbons, Maud
Gibbons, Helena & George Harrison, et al to Matilda
Wood Duvall; same land which William H. Gibbons
purchased from Albert & Susanna Curtin by JWB #24:179
(18 acres minus small piece already conveyed).

Albert & Susanna Curtin to William H. Gibbons; 18 acre
parcel, part of 58 acres on Croom Road, prior
conveyance 14 March 1889, JWB 10:675. First described
in deed from Williah H. Tuck and C. C. Magruder,
Trustees, to John W. Coffren, 30 July 1856, CSM 1:310.

Josephine Owings, widow, to Susannah Curtin. For $350
grantor conveys four contiguous lots in Croom, 58
acres. Same conveyed by J. Parker Veazey, Trustee, to
Alice and Rosalie Coffren.
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Floor plan not to scale
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; Croom farmhouse (Dr. William H. Gibbons house) 1893%
10205 Croom Road, (Croom), Upper Marlboro

{ . Priv/occ/res/fair

This is a two-and-one-half-story cross-gavdle frame
house with a one-story bracketed porch across its main
(east) facade., Tntrimce is in the rirst bay of this
‘o three-bay. east gaole end; there is a small pentagonal
i peaked window in this gable end at loft level. A second
| one=bay gable 2nd faces to the south, The cornices are

returned.

A small one-story room has been ouilt into the cor-
ner of the ell formed by the east and south gables; this
room once served as a doctor's office.

Asbestos shingle presently covers the orisinal German
siding.

This house was built in 1893 by Dr, William E. Gibbons,

- and served from that tire until his death in 1940 as his
< | home and doctor's office. The land on wnich it stands was
earlier part of an 18-acre parcel which included the John
W. Coftren house and store. Dr. Gibbons bought the parcel
| in 1893, and built the house at that time. In 1910 a rear
| kitchen addition was built, probably replacing an earlier
one-story kitchen. |
| The Gibbons house stands in the villag-= of Croom, an
. historically important cluster of buildings which centers
i around 3t. Thomas' HEpiscopal Church., Besides this important
early (1740) church and its cemetery, several 19th century
dwelling houses still stand along the Croom road, as well
as the store and post ofrice, schoolhouse and o0ld rectory
“building. The Gibbons house stands prominently near the
. - center of this historic grouping.
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”r'"anca is in th3 firat bay of this three-bay
‘mast gable end; there is a small pentagonal peaked window
}u*=;ia gable end at loft level, A second one<bay géble
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_ﬁ gmall one=story room has been tailt into the corner
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Agbestos shingle vresently covers the original German
s1ding.
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- Sﬂd Bﬂh‘ed Prom that time until his death in 1940 as his
zmm,e and doctor's office. The land on which it stands was
,aeg},&ar part of an 18-scre purcel which included the Jobn ¥,

:;-,g-- \and ouilt the house at that time, In 1910 a vear 78
?ﬂij qun addition was built, probably replacing an earlier .
~ ena-p'tqry htchen.“ e
Qe Gibbors house stands in the village of Crom,..___
o historicelly important eluster of buildinge which centers
. arognd §t, Unomas' Episcopal Crurch, Besides this'impor- !
| "-«ts’m early (1740) church and its cemetery, several 19th -
ouutury dwalling houses 8Lil) stsnd along 'the Croom rogd,
‘\ an wgll as the stors and vost office, schoolhouse and
rectory tuilding. The Gibbons house atande prominently
" nee> the center of this historie grouping.
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JWB24 21793 interview with descendant.of Dr. Gibbons
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Mhe mlma Historic Sites Inventory was offic :I.all t.d

. By an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be' to 1 *?&g vH‘
nnotated Code of Maryland, Ar\-.iule 41, section qu KA,
!!?ﬁ .Slppblement g

2 ‘rhe Survey and Inventory are being preparad for :I.nt'o'- at
ana 1record purposes only and do not mnstituf:e any in
meic of individual proporty rights.

mi’l‘m ‘l‘O: Maryland Historical Trust
o] ¥ The Shaw House, 21 State Circle

S RS Annapolis, Maryiand 21401
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A83%1:389
6 Oct 1977
Deed

579:431
9 Oet 1940
Dead

579:429
9 Oct 1940
Deed

JWB#24:179
20 Har 1893%
Ded

DR,
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CHAIN OW (CTTLE
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Wilfred Dyer, trustee, (through Robert
Grunt ) to  MNMichael & Mary Simmerer;

by Grant's default on desd of trust #4460:
718, Dyer sells to Simmerers 5.28 acres,
residue ol the land of George Harrison,
same land as #579:4%1

Matilda Wood Duvall to George &
Helena Harrison; 10% acres of land, same
as conveyed to Duvall by 579:429

John & Clara (tibbons, Villiam & Helen Gibbons,
Mauad (Gibbons, Helena & George Harrison, et al
to  Matilda Jood Duvalls; same land which
William |1, Gibbons purchased rrom Aloert

% Susanna Curbtin by JWB#24:179 (18 acres
minus small piece already conveyed)

Albert & Susamma Curtin e} William H.
Cibbonss 18 acre parcel pari of 58 aerus
sold o dusannn Curking on Croom road
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